United Nat'lg[](s 1/ bl _ Ac.6/54/5R.26

23RN
\\4 )\// Fifty-fourth session 6 Decemb&p99
NS .

=7 Official Records Original: English

Sixth Committee

Summary record of the 26th meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Thursday, 4 November 1999, at 10 a.m.

Chairman Mr. Kawamura (Vice-Chairman)

Contents

Agenda item 155: Report of the International Law Commission on the work of its
fifty-first session ¢ontinued

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concernedithin one week of the date of publicatitinthe Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate nourgér each Committee.

99-82175 (E)



A/C.6/54/SR.26

In the absence of Mr. Mochochoko (Lesotho)twouldbeappropriatetoapplythatterm tounilateralacts
Mr. Kawamura (Japan), Vice-Chairman, took the Chaibased on either treaty or customary law. There was a need
for greater knowledge of State practice so that the study
could go beyond the definition of a unilateral act as
reformulated in paragraph 589 ofthe Commission’s report
Agenda item 155: Report of the International Law (A/54/10 and Corr.1 and 2).

Commission on the work of its ffty-first session 6. He welcomed the widening of the topic to include
(continued (A/54/10 and Corr.1 and 2) unilateral acts of States in relation to one or more

1. Mr. Montesino (Spain), referring to the topic of international organizations. However, in view of the
reservations to treatieS, said that the very Comprehensquﬁiculties inherent in consideration of unilateral acts
and accurate work carried out should help States to resol@emulated by international orgaritions, thatarea should
practical issues that had not been sufficiently covered B§ considered separately at a later stage of the
the Vienna Conventions on the Law of Treaties. Higommission's work.

delegation commended the preparatory work done apd  Hijs delegation was in favour of basing the legal

hoped that future sessions would consider the validity gfgime for unilateral acts on the 1969 Convention on the
reservations and ggrtions, which was a pressing concern aw of Treaties. As to the regime of safeguards for greater
in State practice. legal security, he noted that the requirement for publicity

2. In connection with the Special Rapporteur’s fourtgontained in the original definition had been deleted, as it
report (A/CN.4/491 and Add.1-6), he said he endorsed tHil notapply to all cases. However, a definition was needed
correction accepted by the Rapporteur excluding statemeftghe formality required for the act to be expressed and
of non-recognition from the concept of a “reservation”. Aglearly known by the States or organizations to which it
had been clarified in the guidelines already adopted a#@s addressed, in order to avoid problems of proof and
in the Vienna Conventions, it was clear that the leg&Pntroversy about the content.

regime for reservations, andin particular objections, coulfl A restrictive formulation was appropriate for the
notbe applied toreservations relating to non-recognitioguestion of State representatives with the capacity to
Guideline 1.3 had been provisionally adopted by thgrmulate unilateral acts. In that context, article 4,

Commission on firstreading, despite the lack of consensggragraph 3, should be deleted as it contradicted general
on whether that type of reservation was appropriate to &fate practice.

act that purported to exclude or modify the legal effect %f Finallv. the i ¢ bility of unil |
certain provisions of a treaty. . inally, the issue of revocability of unilateral acts

required clarification, and the effects of silence and

3. His delegation agreed with the definition ofcquiescence should also be studied.
conditional interpretative declarations contained in

guideline 1.2.1, on the understanding that the distinctiaﬁ)' In relation t(.) !nternattlor;al I|tab|I|tyt for IEJ'E'rtIO(L:iij
between such declarations and reservations related cml.%lsequences arising out ot acts not pronibite y

thedefinition.Asfaraseffectswereconcerned,conditiongltem:t'ofn?r: lat\# he sa:!d his delega(tj|on prelier:ﬁdtt[\he
interpretative declarations should be governed by a IefeOn ot the three options proposed, namely that the

The meeting was called to order at 10.20 a.m.

regime similar to that governing reservations, which wou ommission should defer consideration of international
include both theratione temporislimitation’ and the rability until it had completed the second reading on the

ossibility of formulating okections. regime of prev_ention. If the Commissio_n did not make
P y . . g' Je o _ progress in defining the concept of due diligence, it would
4. Inrelation to guideline 1.5.1, he said his delegatioge difficult to make proposals relating to international
sharedtheviewthataunilateral statement by which a Stggility. Issues relating to fulfilment of the obligation of

partytoabilateral treaty purported to obtain a modificatiogye diligence should be dealt with separately from the draft
of that treaty could not be considered a reservation. Th&t on prevention.

title of the guideline should therefore be modified so as tlol

be in keeping with the guideline’s content. Mr. Buhedma (Libyan Arab Jamabhiriya) said that

_ . o _ ~the formulation of the draft articles contained in chapter
5. In connection with the Commission’s discussion gl of the Commission’s report (A/54/10) on the nationality
unilateral acts of States, his delegation was also somewRghatural persons in relation to thecsassion of States

baffled by the view that considering unilateral acts to bgas very important as it would make a major contribution
“autonomous” would reduce the topic’s scope too much.



A/C.6/54/SR.26

to the development and codification of international lad6. On the subject of chapter IX, concerning
andwould assist in resolving the problem of statelessneggernational liability for injurious consequences arising
His delegation noted that there was a balance in the dratit of acts not prohibited by international law, he said that,
articles between the rights of citizens and the interestsiofthe event of any injury, the State responsible should be
States: draft articles 1 and 4 recognized the right of eveobliged to compensate the State that had suffered the
individual who had the nationality of the pesgbssor State injury.

to 3 nauc_magltsy from thekdatﬁ of thecsession of States 17 ig delegation supported the second option offered
?n rgquwe. tates tlo takea mea:sures to prevint PErSRfithe Special Rapporteur, namely to suspend the work on
rom becoming stateless as aresult aession, whereas i o national liability until the Commission had finalized

draft articles 8 and 9 specified limits on the obligation tQq <acond reading of the draft articles on the regime of
attribute nationality. prevention

12. His particularly wished to draw attention to th§g n vaidik (India) said that he agreed with
importance of article 12 on the unity ofafamilyand articlg. ;1 icsion members who felt that the scope of the
15 on non-discrimination in relation to nationality. Inthe- - 1 icsion’s consideration of unilateral acts of States
_opinion of his delegation, the draft articles .fulfillled theirgy ould be sufficiently flexible to include the concept of
intended purpose and would a_ppl_y to situations th@%toppel. The distinction between political and legal
occurred_ Iegallyln accordance with mternathnal law bytsijateral acts should be based on the authors’ intention
nqt t9 S|tuat_|ons tha_‘t were unlawful and V|oIateq they produce legal effects. He cautioned against excessive
prmmple; of |nterr_1at|onal law, such as the occupation 9gjiance on either the law of treaties or the autonomy ofthe
annexation of territory by force. acts, and suggested examining the effect of unilateral acts
13. Hisdelegation endorsed the recommendation of therelation to a pre-existing treaty or customary norm as
Commission to the General Assembly concerning thveell. The range of persons formulating unilateral acts
adoption, in the form of a declaration, of the draft articlegiving rise to rights or obligations under international law
on nationality of natural persons in relation to theappeared to be wider than that of persons empowered to
succession of States. conclude treaties under the 1969 Vienna Convention on the

14. Turningtochapter Vlofthe Commission’sreporthéaw of Tregtlgs. He noted that "?‘”‘C'es 5, 6 and 7. were
ontroversial insofar as they relied on the 1969 Vienna

said that his country did not distinguish between th ) .
treaties to which it hadcaeded because theil entailed onvention on the Law of Treaties.
treaty obligations. His delegation supported the approatB. His delegation welcomed the initial progress made
adopted by the Vienna Conventions on the law of treatiby the Working Group on Unilateral Acts of States with a
concerning reservations which affirmed, on the one handew to examining the basic elements of a workable
the sovereign right of States to formulate reservations ardgfinition; the general guidelines to State practice; and the
ontheother, the principle thatreservations to a treaty muitection of future work on the topic. The work of the
not be incompatible with its ¢gdct and purpose. Commission would be facilitated by replies from

15. In connection with chapter VIII of the report, hisGovernments in response to a recently issued

delegation emphasized the importance of the subject%‘fesnonna're'
unilateral acts and the need for the codification an2D. Concerning international liability for injurious
progressive development of that topic. The second repeadnsequences arising out of acts not prohibited by
ofthe Special Rapporteur clearlyidentified th&n issues international law, he said that his delegation agreed that
to be addressed, although there were a number of relevtire Commission should consider international liability on
matters that were not dealt with in the draft. Since theompletion of its work on the regime of prevention; it
purpose of the draft articles contained in the second repshould also consider developments taking place in various
of the Special Rapporteur was to serve as a basis fioher sectorsrelatedtothetopic. He welcomedthe progress
discussion, his delegation considered that it would leehievedinthe area ofreservationstotreatiesecepaed
useful to seek the views of Governments and for thbe draft guidelines on that topic, which would be useful
Commission to prepare a questionnaire requestiitgthe process of international law-making in general and
materials concerning their practice in the area of unilaterathe legal offices of foreign ministriesin particular. Since
acts. the guidelines were notintended to revise the reservations
regime contained in the Vienna Convention on the Law of



A/C.6/54/SR.26

Treaties, they were not likely to be problematic from the different kinds of unilateral acts together in a system
policy and political point of view. of rules that would apply to all of them. A reference to

21. Mr.Alabrune (France)said thatalthough uniIateraPn”ateral declarations alone would be too restrictive an

acts ofinternational organizations should be excluded frgthProach.

the study on unilateral acts, they could be thgestilof a 28. Theword “autonomous” also gaverise todifficulties.
special review by the Commission at a later date. A unilateral act, to be defined as such, had to have
&ptonomous legal effects, which meant legal effects
|§dependent of any manifestation oflon the part of
other subject of inteational law. The autonomy of

22. If, however, unilateral acts of States which gaverri
to obligations for States were excluded from the topic’

scope, there was a risk of excluding all unilateral acts, ggl' e ted b | | act .
they were almost all, in certain circumstances, likely ggoigation created by a unilateral act was an important
terion in determining the purelyunilateral nature of the

involve State obligations. The conditions for engagin%;
State responsibility by a unilateral act could appropriate

be excluded as the Commission was working on Sta?8. If an autonomous unilateral act was an act that
responsibility as a separate topic. created legal effects on the international level without any

23. It was often difficult to determine whether an aclﬂ.nkwith apre-existing customary or treatynorm, the topic

formulated by a State was of a legal or a political natur@ould lose a great part of its interest. It was apprqpriate
Most often, international courts would assess t 8exc|ude unilateral acts based on treatylaw, but unilateral
consequences of the act in question after determining ts?]%tsthat.could cont.rib.utetothe.in’ﬁpleme.ntation ofexisting
intentions of the State author of the act. Such was th@™S did come within the topic’s purview.

explanation of the International Court of Justice in th80. The word “publicly” in article 2 seemed
Nuclear Testsases, which had also stated that thgemtib inappropriate, as a unilateral act did netessarily have
should applyto unilateral acts which purported to, or wete be formulated publicly, although the addressee would
likely to, have legal effects at the international level. needtobe aware ofit. It also seemed inaccurate to say that
24. Article 1 stated that the draft articles applied t e State formulated an actin order to acquire international

unilateral legal acts formulated by States which h gal obligations, as unilateral acts could also be a means

international effects. The word “legal” should be deleted ac?Lilrlnglzr?amtgmmg rights. Use of the term *legal
so as not to exclude political acts which could have Ieggﬁec s” would be an improvement.
effects. That comment also applied to draft article 3. 31. Draftarticle 4, particularly paragraph 3, also raised

25. The provision for acts with legal effects took n(;'j-lfewdifficulties, and State practice in that area should be

account of the intention of the author and focused only 6ﬁwewed.

the consequences of the act. However, the intention of tB2. Draft articles 5, 6 and 7 followed the provisions of
author State was as essential an element as the lefpa 1969 Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties too
consequences for defining the act. Establishing tléosely. Generally speaking, the process of taking rules
intention of the author would often show whether the aétom the Vienna Convention which applied to treaty acts
was political or legal in nature. and applying them to unilateral acts appeared somewhat
&sky. Again, State practice should be considered.

26. Withregardtolegal effects ofa unilateral act, he sal
therole ofthe addressee was alsoimportant. The addres3&e In relation to all of the draft articles, the Working
might sometimes gject the legal effects for fiical Group on Unilateral Acts of States should pay close
reasons, for example in order to oblige the author Stateatiention to the practice of States, whether author States
enterinto negotiations, whereas the authaté&Sssometimes or addressees of unilateral acts. France was ready to assist
wished to avoid entering into negotiations. Consideratidghe Commission by providing information on current
should be given to whether the addressee could reject le§a¢nch practice in relation to unilateral acts.

effects intended to be in its favour. 34. Referringtothe Commission’slong-term programme

27. Thewording of the definition of unilateral legal act®f work, his delegation was unsure whether some of the
in draft article 2 gave rise to some difficulties. Rules ofopics identified by the relevant working group (for
international law applicable to unilateral acts of Statexample, the right to collective security, and the risk of
could not be elaborated if there was no clear definition fifagmentation of international law) were relevant to the
those acts. The objective of codification should be to bring



A/C.6/54/SR.26

Commission’s task of codification and progressivEven thatrecommendation fell far short of the concerns of
development of international law. her delegation, which therefore urged the Commission to

35. It was essential that the topics to be studied by tﬁépand the scope of the definition of unila_teral acts to
Commission should meet the desires and needs of Mem q_lude bOth acts of e_naptment of dome$t'c Ieg!slapon
States. The Commission could usefully undertake ich had dlrectand/pr|nd|rectextraterr|tor|alapphcatlon
separate study on the regime of countermeasures, instg%tath_erStates or nationals of other States a_mdtherecourse
of dealing with that topic in its draft articles on statd® Unilateral use of force by a State on nationals of other

responsibility. It would be useful for the Commission teptates within the territory oflother. Sta.tes in furtherance of
consider the decisions adopted by internation je enforcement of domestic legislation. In that context,

organizations, particularlytheir legal effects, especially r dTIeggtt;on also notedSthat a qn|:ater_al act COUIdH be
it did not wish to deal with unilateral acts of internationalo' Mu'ated by one or more States jointly or in concert. Her

organizations before completing its work oflateral acts delegation would be replying to the questionnaire that had
of States recently been distributed to members of the Sixth

Committee on the topic.
36. Two of the topics identified by the Working Group

on the long-term programme of work should be studied

the Commission: responsibility of international
organizations and the effect of armed conflict on treatie®
Those topics should be added to the draft resolutid

prepared by the Colombian delegation on th

Commission’s report. However, it would not be useful t ppics, together WiFh recommendatiqns, W(.JUId Serve at
deal with environmental law, except to define a specif gast as a useful guide to States in their dealings with each

aspect that was problematic. A topic such as legal aspe_%}l%?r' Itshould alsomean t.hatthe rule oflnternanonal law
that sphere would not be ignored nor given scant respect.

of corruption and related practices was alsoinappropriate.
Those two topics were a subject for intational 39. Mr. Traore (Burkina Faso) said that it was highly
negotiation rather than codification. significant that the Commission’s work on nationality

37. Ms. Kalthum (Malaysia), after noting that the taskrelated onlyto the sicession of States. The narrow scope

of the reconvened Working Group on Unilateral Acts o(?f the topic ]u§t|fled the Comm|ss!on_’s Wofk In an area
States had been to agree on the basic elements Ogegerallycon3|dered to besole_lvat_hmthejur|sd|9t|qn of
workable definition of unilateral acts, to set generaﬁaCh sovereign State. It also justified the Commission’s

guidelines and to point the future direction of the Speci%twice of habitual residence as the primary criterion for

Her delegation would also welcome a study of State
sponsibility in the light of the research to be done on the
spects of unilateral actstowhich she had justreferred and
| the light of the provisions of Article 2, paragraph 4, of
e Charter of the United Nations. A study of the two

Rapporteur’s work, said that she regretted that the Spe gFermining the nationality of individuals, a presumption
Rapporteur’s report (A/CN.4/500 and Add.1) did not dediat would not necessarily be made outside the context of

with unilateral acts of States in the form of the unilater sucgessoyn Or: Statt)es. His .delega}gon ;uppgrtedd tEe
enactment of domestic laws having extraterritorial effec ommission’s choice because it considerably reduced the
on other States and in turn affecting other forms &sks of statelessness; better that a State should have a few

international relationships, including commercial ana),(tra natlonals 'than.that an .|nd|VId'uaI _ShOU|d .be left
financial ones, whether with third States or their national\g’.!thoUt natlona!ny, without citizenship, without rights,
As such unilateral acts affected not only internationé(YIthOUt legal existence.

relationships but also the equally binding internationdl0. The issue of immunities was fundamental to good
obligations of States under the relevant treaties, such asitiieernational relations. A balance must be struck between
various international agreements under the auspices of thiplomatic protection and the rights of the States and its
World Trade Organization, the scope of the Speciardinarycitizens. The courts of Burkina Faso consistently
Rapporteur’s work should not have been limited trefused to hear proceedings against persons covered by
studying the subject within the framework of th@69 immunity in order to preserve good relations with other
Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties. The Workin&tates. On the other hand, immunity should not permit a
Group had, however, made salient comments on thatural or legal person to ignore civil obligations. His
Special Rapporteur’s report, finding his interpretation afelegation hoped that the work under way would bring
what constituted unilateral acts of States rather restrictivgreater equity and justice to the system of immunities.

It had then recommended a broader concept, which

appeared in paragraph 589 of the Commission’s report.



A/C.6/54/SR.26

41. In the view of his delegation the concept ofhe Commission had not dealt with the issue of State
responsibility attached to all acts of a State, regardlessreSponsibility in the case of reprisals out of proportion to
whether they were wrongful or not. The draft resolutiothe original breach.

currentlybeing consideredinthe Committee on assistang€  aq 5 weak State. Burkina Faso wasjectto many

to third States affected by the application of sanctiong, s of coercion, and it was not always possible to judge

implicitlyrecognized the responsibility oftheintetional =y, o | fuiness of the consequences. His country was well
community for the injury suffered in such case by a Staig, 3 e that many factors entered into responsibility for the

without there having been a wrongful act. Conceptuallyy,mission of the act as between the coercing State and
the problem was related to the topic of internationgfe coerced State. The key issue was to establish the

liability for injurious consequences arising out of acts NQlyistance of the coercion and the link between the effects
prohibited by international law. On that topic the,,q the act that created them

Commission had concentrated its efforts to date on a . ) ) )

subject of particular importance to his country, the issf- Onthetopicofreservationstotreaties, his ddieg

of prevention of transboundary damage from hazardolfok the view that any reservation that calleq into question
activities. Disparities in level of developmentwere sogreffi€ substance of a treaty should be rejected. Use of
that the acts of some countries, although not prohibitégservations was common and indeed indispensable;
under current international law, could be disastrous féowever, they should not relate jtes cogensrorms or
others. In that area, the law was not concerned wiftPligationserga omnes

whether an actwaswrongful or not, butwith whether thewg7,  Mr. Szénazi (Hungary) was pleased to note that,
was a link of causality between the harm and the act. TRespite the complexity of theissues involved, progress had
responsibility in that case, that is, the liability, was t@een achieved on the topic of unilateral acts of States. The
repair the harm suffered, whether the causative act wgsmmission had laid down the groundwoecessary for
wrongful or not. keeping the size of the project within manageable

42. Inthe case of State responsibility for a wrongful acBoundaries. The streamlined scope should be maintained,
his delegation supported the approach ofidentifying leve¥§1ce itwould conduce to a timely completion of the study.
of seriousness; responsibility should be greater where wai§ delegation endorsed the concept recommended by the
abreach of fus cogensiorm or an obligatioergaomnes Working Group, as it appeared in paragraph 589 of the
The definition of “injured State” in article 40 shouldCommission’s report. The recently issued questionnaire
include two elements: the element of moral or materi#jould also serve as a good starting point for ascertaining
injury and the element of causality between the injury angfate practice, enabling the Commission to revert to the
the act. His delegation felt that the distinction betweensgven draftarticles formulated by the Special Rapporteur.

State or States specifically injured by an internationallyg. On chapter IX, relating to international liability for

wrongful actand other States having alegal interest in tii§urious consequences arising out of acts not prohibited
performance of the obligations was relevant. Articles 43, international law (prevention oftransboundary damage
to 46 on reparation were well balanced. There was m@&m hazardous activities), he said his delegation preferred
reason to change the wording of article 44 to make it mof@ comment at a later stage, when the Commission’s views
specific with respect to the obligation to pay interest. were known. It was regrettable that the Commission had

43. Articles 51 to 53 were out of place, because th&gen unable to consider the proposals contained in the
focused primarily on distinguishing the wrongfulness opP€cial Rapporteur’s second report (A/CN.4/501), which
an act, whereas in the opinion of his delegation ttRiumerated a detailed set of principles relating to the
question of responsibility was paramount. Chapter v dipligation of due diligence and the treatment of
circumstances precluding wrongfulness needed to ipdernational liability. He noted that the Commission had

reworded, because the circumstances cited precludi®fided to defer consideration of the question of
responsibility rather than wrongfulness. international liability pending completion of the second

. . . reading of the draft articles on the prevention of
44. His delegation felt that the draft articles should de?jansbgundary damage from hazardouspactivities. His

with the questions raised by the existence of a plurality Bfelegation took that decision tobe a procedural one, aimed

Sta_tes ?nvolve_d ir_1 orinjured byabreach ofan internationg{ facilitating further progress on the issue of prevention.
obligation. Linking countermeasures to compulsory

arbitration was an unfortunate method diating dispute 49. Therewas, nonetheless, aninherentinterrelationship
settlement procedures. His delegation was surprised tiRgfween the duty of States to exercise due diligence while



A/C.6/54/SR.26

discharging their obligations relating to prevention andule in the first sentence. The second sentence was merely
on the other hand, the question of liability if sucka more generalized statement ofthe principle containedin
obligations were not fulfilled. It was therefore a matter dhe first. His delegation therefore thought it useful to
particular concernthat both the Special Rapporteur and tinelude in the draft guidelinesrecommendations on the use
Chairman of the Commission had raised the possibility of supplementary means of interpretation, once the nature
terminating work on the topic of liability altogether. Suctof unilateral statements had been resolved. His delegation
a decision would clearly hamper the full development artzklieved that such supplementary means could include any
effectiveness of rules relating to prevention. Moreover, @ther document, in addition to the treaty and the relevant
could not be reconciled with Principle 22 of the Stockholmanilateral statement, that established the intentions of the
Declaration and Principle 13 ofthe Rio Declaration, whicBtate formulating the statement. The occasions on which
urged States to cooperate in developing furtheupplementary means should be used would have to be
international law regarding liability. The Commissiorspecified: perhaps they should be restricted to cases where
should not lose sight of the original task of elaboratinthe interpretation in terms of the first sentence of draft
rules on liability. paragraph 1.3.1 left the meaning ambiguous or led to a

50. Mr. Rogachev (Russian Federation), speaking Oﬁnann‘estly unreasonable result.

reservationstotreaties (chapter Vl of the report), saidthed. One issue that was not sufficiently reflected in the

the progress made on the topic was due to the fact that @nmission’s report was that of declarations which were
Commission had adopted the balanced approach baseddarnally inconsistent, sometimes seeming to be a
the status quo established by the 1969, 1978 and 19&B8ervation and sometimes an interpretative declaration.
Vienna Conventions. That approach had proved its wor8uch declarations were not uncommon and it might be
on both theoretical and practical grounds and had alsseful if the Commission considered the conditions under
passed the essential test of durability. It was therefore tiwhich the rules on reservations or interpretative

to finalize the draft guidelines. declarations applied to such documents.

51. One of the main problems arising from th&5. Giventhe practical orientation ofthe draftguidelines,
implementation of the relevant provisions of the Viennthe illustrative list of unilateral statements that could in
Conventions was the need to distinguish betweeertain circumstances be confusedwith reservations (draft
reservations and ilateral $atements, which could appearguidelines 1.4-1.4.5) was useful. With regard to draft
to be reservations but were not. Such a distinction coudaiidelines 1.5 to 1.5.3, his delegation endorsed the view
obviously be drawn only if there were established arttiat “reservations” to bilateral treaties were not
practical criteria making clear the difference betweereservations as understood in the Vienna Conventions.
them. The Vienna Conventions were deficient in tha&duch a “reservation” was tantamount to a proposal of
respect, which meant that to determine the nature ohagotiations to finalize the text of a treaty.

given unilateral statementits contenthad to be scrutinizeo{b Ending with a few suggestions of an editorial nature
The complexitywas increased bythe factthatthose mak.iﬂg said that the term “act of official confirmation” did not

h he difficul | . ) Vienna Conventions; it would
approach to the difficulty would be to define unilateragy o efore be useful to provide a definition, perhaps as an

statements which were near-reservations in terms OfW@planatory footnote to draft guidelines 1.1 and 1.2.1
they were not. Secondly, since the overwhelming majority of reservations

52. With regard to draft guideline 1.3.1, his delegatiolimited the obligations imposed on the party making the
also supported the Commission’'s conclusions ameservation,itseemed logical— on the principle of going
supplementary means of interpretation, which should frmm the general to the particular — to insert draft

used in cases where the interpretation of the statemengundeline 1.1.5 between draft guidelines 1.1.2 and 1.1.3.

the light of the treaty to which it referred left the meaning Thirdly, it was hard to detect any real meaning in the
ambiguous or obscure or would lead to a result which Wﬁﬁrase contained in draft guideline 1.1.6, requiring

manifestly unreasonable. equivalence in the manner in which an obligation was
53. His delegation was less impressed with the secodischarged. That requirement would be redundant if the
sentence of the draft guideline. The intention of the Statdject of the provision was a specific resultand notthe way
formulating the statement was always reflected in the teixt which it was achieved. Draft guideline 1.6 stated that
of the statement and the way to interpret it was to use tttee definitions of unilateral statements were without



A/C.6/54/SR.26

prejudice to their permissibility under the rule applicabldurisdictional Immunities of States and their Property and
to them. Reference to the “equivalent” manner dfoped that it would make further progress during the
discharging the provisions of a treaty, however, did caturrent session of the General Assembly. With regard to
into question the statement’s permissibility. Moreover, thitbe “concept of State for purpose of immunity”, his
notion of equivalence was rather indeterminate and coudélegation agreed with the Commission that it would be
thereby complicate the implementation of draft guidelingdesirable to bring the draft article into line with the draft
1.1.6. The point of the draft guideline was to establish than State responsibility, including with regard to federal
principle wherebya unilateral statemaithed at changing States. In principle, international rights and obligations of
the legal effect of provisions relating to the manner ia State as a sjdzt of international law should also be
which the treaty was discharged was a reservation. Tapplicable within the context of jurisdictional immunities.

words “but equivalentto”should therefore be deleted. The  Referring to the section on criteria for determining
Russian text, too, was unsatisfactory. the commercial character of a contract or transaction, he
58. Mr. Varso (Slovakia) said that his delegationsaid that the nature and purpose of the commercial
supported all efforts to specify the scope of the applicatidransaction should be the starting point for consideration
of reservations to treaties. It welcomed the progress thiits commercial character. He noted that, with regard to
Commission had achieved thus far on the Guide tontracts of employment, the Working Group was
Practice, particularlythe efforts of the Special Rapportewrttempting to maintain a balance between the interests of
His delegation supported the Commission’s conceptuhle employer State, which should be able to invoke
approach to the structure of the draft guidelines and, immunity from jurisdiction if the contract of employment
principle, their content as well, which was based on theas directly related to the exercise of its sovereignty, and
relevant provisions of the Vienna Conventions of 196%he State of the forum, which should have jurisdiction in
1978 and 1986, as clearly illustrated by draft guidelinmost every other case.

1.1.1. The scope of reservatloqs or |.nterpretat|\692_ His delegation agreed with the Working Group that
declarations, tgklng Into account.thelr phra§|_ng gnd NaMfeasures of constraint against State property required a
should be confined to_the exclu5|on. or modification ofttl ore complex approach (A/54/10, annex, para. 118). The
Iegal_ ?HECtS of c:ertaln treaty provisions; the phrase “9fasons and circumstances for bilateral measures of
specific 'aspects would also restrict across"[he'bo""{:%straint against State property should always be taken
reservations somewhat. into account and informed by the principle of universal
59. Hestressedthepractical nature ofguideline 1.3.1 rstice. On that basis, a State’s failure to fulfil its
the method of implementation of the distinction betweeinternational obligtions was an understandable ground for
reservations and interpretative declarations and guidelic@nstraint; however, legislative measures against another
1.4 on unilateral statements other than reservations afhte’s property were not, unless the State of the forum
interpretative declarations. With regard to the latter, hjgovided just and adequate compensation. His delegation
delegation acepted the underlying philosophy of thenoped thatthe Working Group would reconsider all aspects
distinction drawn in paragraph (1) of the commentargf measures of constraint in order to ensure that States
which stated that interpretative declarations generally dicere sufficiently protected in the courts of the forum State,
not have as close a relationship with the treaty. Guidelimead also to protect States which had acquired property
1.1.6 on statements purporting to discharge an obligatitegally and in good faith.

by equivalent means and guideline 1.3.3 on formulaticgg' His delegation agreed with the Commission that it
of a unilateral statement when a reservation is prohibitgd 14 ,e premature to draw final conclusions on the place
seemed to add further elements to a treaty and should e, qijateral acts of States within the system of
subsumed under draftguideline 1.4.2. His delegation hopede n ational law. It supported the Commission's decision
that the Commission would also elaborate procedurg] e to the starting point and analyse the components
gwdellngs on |mplement|ng reservationsand interpretatiye:, o proposal set out in paragraph 589 of the report. The
declarations as defined. definition of unilateral statements in that paragraph and
60. Thelack ofaunified set ofrules on the jurisdictionats components, namely, unilaterality, legal effects and
immunities of States and their property posed difficultiesotification, closely paralleled unilateral declarations
for some States, including Slovakia, particularly in theithin the framework of reservations to treaties. Indeed,
application of property immunities. His delegatiorit seemed that many of the rules applicable to treaty
supported the efforts of the Working Group omeservationscould be applieditatis mutandig unilateral



A/C.6/54/SR.26

acts. The more important question of what distinguishé®. With regard to contracts of employment, his
a unilateral act from a reservation should be addressgelegation felt that the clarification relating to article 11
within the framework of the obligations of States and afiroposed in paragraph 105 of the report of the Working
their consequences, including sanctionsin the case of n@roup contained in the annex to the Commission’s report
compliance. It must be determined whether th&asaconstructiveapproach.Hisdelegationlooked forward
particularities of unilateral acts, with respect to both forno the substantive discussions on the topic scheduled to take
and content, were so specific and numerous as to compnigace in a few days by an open-ended Working Group of
a separate category of international law. For the tintbe Sixth Committee, but felt that three days might not be
being, his delegation believed that they were not, and thatfficienttofinalize the draft articles and supported serious
unilateral acts should form part of international law ononsideration of the matter at the next session of the
international obligations. General Assembly with a view to adopting the articles in

64. Mr. Mirzaee-Yengejeh (Islamic Republic of Iran) the form of a convention.

said that the International Law Commission was to l&. In view of the lack of a legal regime encompassing
commended on completing its work on nationality imll types of unilateral acts of States, developing relevant
relation to the stcession of States in a reasonable periadiles or guidelines in that field would enhance

of time. The draft articles struck the right note byredictability in international relations. His delegation

reaffirming the principle that nationality was essentiallgoncurred with the majority view in the Commission that

governed by internal law within the limits set bynilateral acts which gave rise to international

international law. The articles had achieved an appropriatsponsibility were beyond the scope of the topic.
balance between the legitimate interests of States andJafilateral acts of international organizations should also
individuals and presented helpful guidelines on avoidinge left aside for the time being. However, a study on
statelessness. Significantly, the Commission had excludestoppel would be useful, without prejudice to its possible
cases of occupation and illegal annexation of territory fromclusion. A survey of various types of unilateral acts of
the scope of the articles. The Commission’States and their classification was essential.

recommendation that the draft articles should be adoptgd regard to the topic of international liability for

bythe Gengral Assembly in the form of gde_ata'aun was jurious consequences arising out of acts not prohibited
a pragmatic approach. Although non-binding, the dra&g international law, his delegation commended the

articleswould immediately be available to States curren ommission for its comprehensive examination of the

coping \.N'th problems C?f nanona!lty in relation to issues of prevention and due diligence. It agreed with the
succession of States. His delegation med support th@mmission’s decision to defer consideration of the
msjorlty wfeyv on thfe mel;[/lhodbof gdopno'n. leken th"auestion of international liability pending completion of

absence of interest from Member States in work on thfie gecong reading of the draft articles on the prevention

nationality of legal persons, the topic could be ConSider%ﬁ’transboundary damage from hazardous activities.
concluded.

On the subject of resetions to treaties, his

. . . 69.
65. His delegation attached great importance 10 thg|eqation favoured the Commission’s approach in
Comm|§3|on swork on jurisdictionalimmunities of Statef)reparing a Guide to practice, taking as a basis the general
and their property. In recent years, a numbetafes had regime for reservations contained in the Vienna

enacted national legislation restricting the immunity Gf oy entions on the Law of Treaties, rather than developing
States. Although the tendency was to exclude commerc&a}nore formal instrument.

activities from the scope of State immunity, State practice

and legislation varied widely and in some cases went f4f- The Commission’s recent practice in identifying
beyond the emerging trend to undermine the very principigsues to be addressed by Governments had undoubtedly
of Stateimmunity. An interational standard was thereforecontributed to a more focused debate within the Sixth
urgentlyneeded, and the Sixth Committee should spareq;,gmmittee. It would be an ideal situation if the majority
effort to bring to fruition the endeavours of theof States could prepare written replies to the queries of the
Commission. A clear definition of “commercialCommission. However, experience had shown that a
transaction” for the purpose of State immunity wasonsiderable number of States were not in a position to
essential in order to avoid conflicting interpretations at tH€spond in writing. Under those circumstances, his

national level; the definition should include both naturéelegation expected the Commission to pay due attention
and purpose criteria. to the statements of delegations in the Sixth Committee.



A/C.6/54/SR.26

71. His delegation would not pzt to a spt session of 75. His delegation noted, in particular, that article 3
the Commission in the year 2000 and agreed with tlexplicitly limited the application of the draft articles to a
special organizational arrangements suggested in ordestiwcession of States occurring in conformity with
accommodate the split session within the existing budgéetternational law. Accordingly, questions of nationality
The International Law Seminar held every year ithat might arise in situations of illegal occupation of
conjunction with the sessions of the Commission wdsrritory, illegal annexation, or purported separation or
invaluable for the dissemination of international law angecession contrary to existing treaties or other provisions
should be continued. of international law were outside the scope of the draft

72.  Lastly, his delegation urged the Commission to maR&tCIes.

every effort to complete the second reading of the draf6. His delegation endorsed the Commission’s

articles on State responsibility in the remainder of it'ecommendation that the text should be adopted by the
currentquinquennium. Substantive comments on that to@eneral Assembly in the form of a dedton, while

had been prepared by Professor John Djamchid Momtazraserving the right to make specific comments at the time
behalfofthe delegation ofthe Islamic Republic of Iran anglich action was taken. His delegation also shared the
would be transmitted to the Special Rapporteur and t®mmission’s view that there was no need to deal with

members of the Commission. succession in relation to the nationality of legal persons

hand that the work of the Commission on the topic should

73. Mr. Jacovides(C id thattherole of the Sixt
' vides(Cyprus) sai attheroieotthe Six Peconsideredconcluded.

Committee, as the political body in which all Membe
States were represented, was to provide clear guidance/@n With regardtojurisdictional immunities of States and
specificissues, such asthose mentioned bythe Commissibair property (A/54/10, chap. VII), his delegation

in chapter Il of its report. He shared the view that thevelcomed the report of the Working Group on the topic.
positions stated orally by Governments should be given ifithe Working Group had concentrated on five main issues,
less weight than the written comments submitted by Stateentified in 1994, and had produced a valuable study,
in response to questionnaires. Small States, in particulergether with a short background paper attached as an
were necessarily limited in producing written commen@ppendix, dealing with the existence or non-existence of
on a wide variety of topics. jurisdictionalimmunityin actions arising out of violations

74. Turning to chapter IV of the report, he said that th%?rlljscogensr?rms, part;\cularlyﬁctsr?faSta}te '2 violation
selection of the topic of nationality in relation to the® udmiam ng ts norrr:js g\(}ln.gt €c a;]actg:us ogen? h
succession of States met a real need. His delegation no't-gﬁ elegation noted with interest the contents of the

with satisfaction that theiison d’étreof the draft articles appendix, especially the two new developments, one

was the concern of the international community as to ygg@nceerning the amendment by the United States of its

resolution of nationality problems of natural personsinttﬁaore'gn Sovereign Immunity Act through the Anti-

case of a succession of States, and that, althou Wrorism and Effective Death Penalty Actl&i96, and
e other concerning theinochetcase in the United

nationality was essentially governed by national. q His del 4 d and d with the vi
legislation, the competence of States could be exercis}éfﬁ'g om. His delegation pote and agree W!t the view
the German delegation that the question was of

only within the limits set by intemtional law. His 0 . )
delegation agreed that the fundamental concern was Fm:grmous. mpo_rta_mcg and was an essential part of the
protection of human rights and thatthe legitimate interestdolect of jurisdictionalmmunity.
ofboth States and individuals should be taken into accouid8. From the beginning of the consideration of the item
The key provision of article 1, based on article 15 of thia the Committee and the Commission, his delegation had
Universal Declaration of Human Rights, was the right davoured a pragmatic approach, avoiding differences
everyone to a nationality. Another key provision in articlbetween the theories of absolute and restrictive immunity,
16, also based on the Declaration, was that “no one shahile aiming atacompromise on outstanding issues. State
be arbitrarily deprived of his nationality nor denied themmunitywas animportantinstitution in international life;
right to change his nationality”. Traditional concepts df a generally acepted convention could be achieved, that
nationality law, such as the status of habitual resident®uld indicate the time and efforts devoted to its
(article 14) and the criterion of an effective link, were alscealization. Realistically, however, the likelihood of
taken into account (article 19). reaching agreement in the near future was doubtful.
Moreover, as the United Kingdom delegation had pointed
out, the institutions of State immunity were bound up with

10



A/C.6/54/SR.26

the development of a modern system of trade ardhtions, which had become a customary rule of
commerce, and to be successful, any attempted codificatiaternational law.

must correspond to modern conditions of internationgh, s delegation agreed with the Nordic States that

trade and cover adequately all issues that were I'kelyﬁ”f’lrd-party dispute settlement procedures were a sine qua

arise, including enforcement. The possibility ofdrawing(?n in modern international law and an indispensable

up a model law offered a means of preserving what h% otection for small and weaker States.
been achieved while leaving room for practice to develop. ) ) ) _ )

I . 83. Hisdelegation was ofthe viewthat the international
79. Chapter V of the report (State responsibility) ra'seéjommunity, having adopted the notiorjug cogenin the

fundamental issues. His delegation had consistently he}tl ., n 5 convention on the Law of Treaties of 1969 must
that_$tate responsibility had, been. traqsformeq from tIgﬁsotake:the nextlogical step of giving exact contenttothe
traditional approach of dealing primarily with injury to.,, ot |n that connection, he drewattention to document

aliens to the current, much broader context, in which “]@/CN 4/54, paras. 16, 26 and 105 to 119, and document
interests of international public order and of the - g/a7/SR 21 ’

international community as a whole must be taken into ) ) o , i
account. Due weight must be given to the development@#- Hisdelegation noted with interestthe discussion that
such notions gsis cogensnderga omnesbligations, as had taken place in the Commission on the basis of the
well as State practice. His degtpn shared the confidencer®port of the Chairman of the Drafting Committee. The
expressed by the Nordic countries that the second readifigue of consent, which must be freely given, should be
of the draft articles would be completed within the term giPProached with caution since the very essence of the

office of the Commission’s current members, in othgpotion of peremptory norms was that they could not be
words, by 2001. derogated from by agreement between the parties, because

i , ) _that would be contrary to international public policy.
80. Overall, his delegation concurred with the Special

Rapporteur’s approach. There was a practical reason &t Therelationship between the effequsfcogenand

the distinction between a State and States specifica(:{gat of Article 103 of the Charter of the United Nations
injured by an internationallywrongful act, and other Staté§ould be made clear. Article 103 related to incatityity
which had a legal interest in the performance of th@nd dictated that in case of conflict between the Charter
relevant obligations but did not suffer economicallnd @ treaty, the Charter prevailed. The effecjusf
quantifiable injury. While the legal interest existed for bot§09€ns however, was more drastic, in that if established,
categories of States, in the practice of States it was tii@ullified the treaty.

specifically injured State that had the right to reparatio®6. On the topic of reservations to treaties (A/54/10,
His delegation subscribed to the view that a wrongdoinghap. V1), his delegation shared the view that the basic
State must provide compeatgon to the specificallyinjured provisions on the subject were to be found in the Vienna
State, including, in addition to the principal amount ofegime on the law of treaties. It agreed with the approach

pecuniary damage, interest and loss of profit. With regatgken of elaborating a Guide to practice rather than a more
to the question of a plurality of States involved in a breagdgrmal document.

ofaninternational obligation, his delegation preferredthge' Likewise, with regard to unilateral acts of States
é/54/10, chap. VIII), his delegation hoped that further
progress would be made once replies had been received to

the questionnaire in paragraph 594 of the report.

it should be dealt with in the framework of the draf
articles, and agreed with the Special Rapporteur
approach to draft article 27.

81. His delegation’s position on countermeasures W% On the topic of international liability for injurious
thattheir scope should be narrowly defined, since theylent: P y J

themselves to abuse at the expense of weaker States;ﬁ? sequences arising out of acts not prohibited by

S : ernational law (A/54/10, chap. IX), his delegation
they should not be punitive, but should be aimed gl preciated the useful work done by the Commission on

restitution and reparation or compensation, rather th R issue of prevention and the obligation of due diligence
punishment; that there should be an extensive third-pa P . 9 9 '
d looked forward to fruitful progress on the second

disputesettlementsystem;andthattheyshouldbeappligl . .
if at all, oljectively and not abusively. His delegationreadlng of the draft articles.

stressed that armed countermeasures were prohibited urd®er With regard to chapter X of the report, the
Article 2, paragraph 4, of the Charter of the Unite€ommission was on the right track in its planned future

11



12

A/C.6/54/SR.26

activities and contacts, as well as in the very useful
International Law Seminar.

The meeting rose at 12.40 p.m.



